
 

 

Agenda - Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 4 - Tŷ Hywel 

Meeting date: 4 November 2020 

Meeting time: 09.00

For further information contact: 

Sarah Beasley 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHealth@senedd.wales
------ 

Informal pre-meeting (09.00-09.30)  

 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(09.30)   

2 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (ix) to resolve to exclude the 

public for item 3 of today's meeting 

(09.30)   

3 COVID-19: Discussion of key issues for the inquiry into the 

impact of Covid-19 on mental health 

(09.30-10.00) (Pages 1 - 17)  

Paper 1 – Key issues paper 

Research brief 

Break (10.00-10.30)  

 

4 COVID-19: Evidence session with the Minister for Mental Health, 

Wellbeing and Welsh Language 

(10.30-11.30) (Pages 18 - 26)  

Eluned Morgan MS, Minister for Mental Health, Wellbeing and Welsh 

Language 

Tracey Breheny, Deputy Director of Mental Health, Substance Misuse and 

Vulnerable Groups - Welsh Government 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

Liz Davies, Senior Medical Officer Substance Misuse and Mental Health and 

Vulnerable Groups - Welsh Government 

 

Paper 2 – Welsh Government 

5 Paper(s) to note 

(11.30)   

5.1 Letter from the Welsh Local Government Association with additional 

information following the meeting of 23 September 2020 

 (Pages 27 - 28)  

5.2 Letter from Aneurin Bevan University Health Board regarding rest facilities at 

the Grange University Hospital 

 (Pages 29 - 30)  

5.3 Letter from the Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation 

Committee to the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding the 

Nutrition Related Labelling, Composition and Standards Provisional Common 

Framework 

 (Pages 31 - 35)  

5.4 Letter from the Chair of the Legislation, Justice and Constitution Committee 

to y Llywydd regarding the scrutiny of Covid-19 regulations 

 (Pages 36 - 38)  

5.5 Community Health Council's report: Maternity Care during the Coronavirus 

Pandemic 

 (Pages 39 - 86)  

5.6 Letter to the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding trauma and 

orthopaedic services in Wales 

 (Page 87)  

5.7 Letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding trauma and 

orthopaedic services in Wales 

 (Pages 88 - 89)  



 

 

6 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (ix) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of this meeting 

(11.30)   

7 COVID-19: Consideration of evidence 

(11.30-12.00)   



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 3By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 3

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 

HSCS Committee - Invitation to give oral evidence – 4 Nov 2020 

Minister for Mental Health, Wellbeing and the Welsh Language 

Key priorities for remainder of Senedd 

A – Mental Health 

B – Substance Misuse 

C – Dementia & Covid 

D – Autism & Covid 

E – Children and obesity 

F – Health and the Welsh Language 

A - Mental Health 

1. Together for Mental Health is the Welsh Government’s 10 year cross
governmental strategy to improve mental health and well-being across all
ages. It sets out a number of high level outcomes aimed at achieving a
significant improvement to both the quality and accessibility of mental health
services for all ages.  The strategy recognises that the causes and effects of
poor mental health are complex, challenging and multi-faceted which requires
an integrated, cross governmental approach.  The strategy is underpinned by
a series of delivery plans, the latest of which was published in January 2020.

2. Whilst some of the actions contained in the latest 2019-22 delivery plan
represent a necessary continuation and investment in mental health services,
in other areas the plan is intended to drive a step change in service provision
and/or additional government led activity to prevent poor mental health. The
priority areas also reflect views from extensive stakeholder engagement and
the themes identified from over 100 recommendations in related Assembly
Committee reports.

3. My priority areas for mental health for the next 3 years are:

• Improving mental health and well-being and reducing inequalities –
through a focus on strengthening protective factors including driving and
enhancing tier 0 support, considering the role of social prescribing within

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 2 / Paper 2

Pack Page 18

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

that and ensuring that Together for Mental Health milestones that cover 
factors such as debt are reached.  
 

• Improving access to support for the emotional and mental well-being 
of children and young people – improving communication and access 
and ensuring sustainable improvements to timeliness of interventions, as 
well as supporting the new curriculum and whole school approach, 
extending the reach of NHS services into schools and filling gaps in 
services within both primary and secondary care through Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). Co-chairing the whole 
school approach task and finish group and emphasise in the agenda the 
need for a clear patient pathway through the no wrong door approach 
ensuring a seamless transition.  
 

• Further improvements to crisis and out-of-hours provision for children, 
working age and older adults – moving to a common, multiagency offer 
across Wales including ensuring appropriate support and conveyancing 
for crisis care 
 

• Improving the access, quality and range of psychological therapies 
for children, working age and older adults including exploring the 
option of single session counselling and promoting our online CBT tool 
Silvercloud to deliver a significant reduction in waiting times by the end of 
this Government, to increase the range of therapies offered and to support 
the workforce - ultimately improving service user experience in particular 
for those with complex needs driven via the RSBs. 
 

• Improving access and quality of perinatal mental health services – 
further development of perinatal mental health services in line with quality 
standards and care pathways and the provision of in-patient care. 
 

• Improving quality and service transformation – including a focus on 
improvements to areas such as eating disorders support, people in contact 
with the criminal justice system and co-occurring mental health and 
substance misuse issues.  

 
4. I will also focus on the following underpinning areas which are essential to 

achieving better outcomes for those accessing mental health services across 
Wales: 

 

• Data - Implementing the mental health core data set to improve consistency, 
robustness and the focus on outcomes across all-age mental health 
services. 

• Workforce - Developing the mental health workforce through the 10 year 
workforce plan led by HEIW. 

• Strengthening Engagement - Strengthening service user and third sector 
engagement across policy and service improvements. 

• Legislation – delivering the secondary legislation programme needed to 
implement legal reform to the Mental Capacity Act 1983 in Wales.  This 
reflects work across both devolved and reserved policy areas.   

Pack Page 19



3 
 

 
5. I am taking forward actions to improve dementia care and support as part of 

the 3 year Dementia Action Plan for Wales, published in 2018. Similarly, I 
will take forward actions to prevent suicide and self-harm as part of the Welsh 
Government’s Talk to Me 2 strategy. 

 
Impact of Covid-19 

 
6. On 9 October 2020, I issued a detailed Written Statement  outlining the 

actions the Welsh Government has taken to respond to the immediate mental 
health-related effects of coronavirus and how we will support people and 
communities through the autumn and winter months ahead. 

7. The Welsh Government has focused its response to the mental health impact 
of the pandemic on three key areas: 

i. Maintaining mental health services and responding to immediate mental 
health needs; 

ii. Strengthening protective factors and reducing the socioeconomic impacts of 
the pandemic on mental health and wellbeing; 

iii. Supporting the NHS to meet the changing mental health needs in their 
areas, while planning for a second wave and ensuring mental health 
services can stabilise and recover for the long term. 

8. Evidence is showing that many of the areas we now need to strengthen in 
response to Covid lie in areas outside health – for example, employment 
support, homelessness prevention and debt support. This can only be 
achieved through an effective cross-government and multi-agency approach 
and therefore I intend to work across Ministerial portfolios to strengthen 
actions to respond to the wider socioeconomic and other societal harms. 

9. These new actions are set out set in a refreshed version of the Together for 
Mental Health Delivery Plan 2019-22, released on 9 October 2020. The plan 
confirms that whilst the key priority areas set out in the original plan remain 
relevant, we have accelerated a number of actions to respond to the 
immediate mental health needs arising from the pandemic. These include 
extending Tier 0 support, faster roll out of the Wales Traumatic Stress Quality 
Improvement Initiative and the earlier rollout of Health for Health 
Professionals to support NHS staff.  

10. The refreshed plan also sets out significant new actions in those areas that 
are important protective factors to support mental health and wellbeing. 
Support and resilience in these areas is a critical part of a system wide 
response to lessening the socio-economic impact of the pandemic on well-
being and intended to reduce the need to access more specialist mental 
health services. This includes education, employment, financial inclusion and 
homelessness support.  

11. The plan also includes strengthened actions in recognition of the 
disproportionate impact the pandemic has had on particular groups in society, 

Pack Page 20

https://gov.wales/written-statement-mental-health-and-coronavirus-pandemic
https://gov.wales/mental-health-delivery-plan-2019-to-2022
https://gov.wales/mental-health-delivery-plan-2019-to-2022


4 
 

particularly those who may be financially vulnerable, on low incomes, from 
BAME communities and children and young people.  

12. Supporting children and young people’s mental health is one of my top 
priorities. I and other Ministers will continue to work jointly across health social 
services and education on our Whole School Approach to emotional well-
being.  Significant additional funding has been announced to support this area 
and we have also developed the Youth Mental Health Toolkit, which launched 
in June and is hosted on HwB. On 9 October the Children, Young People and 
Education Committee published its two year update on the ‘Mind over Matter’ 
recommendations which the Welsh Government will respond to shortly, 
providing an update of progress against the original report.  

13. It is difficult to predict exactly how the pandemic will impact on mental health. 
What is clear is that a collaborative and partnership approach is needed to 
respond to the nation’s mental health and wellbeing needs – and we all have 
a role to play in this. We are also aware that early intervention is key to better 
outcomes and that we must deliver on our suicide prevention work  

B - Substance Misuse  
 

14. The Welsh Government’s Substance Misuse Delivery Plan 2019-22 was 
launched on 23 October 2019 and is rooted in a harm reduction approach 
which recognises addiction as a health and care issue as opposed to one that 
is solely related to criminal justice. The delivery plan identifies a number of 
priority areas including: responding to co-occurring mental health problems; 
stronger work with housing and homelessness services and providing further 
support for families and carers of people who misuse substances. Substance 
misuse services have adapted rapidly to Covid-19 and the delivery plan is 
currently being refreshed to reflect the impact. In particular, significant effort 
has been delivered to support those who are homeless, many of whom have 
substance misuse and/or mental health issues. Some of the key new areas in 
the refreshed delivery plan will include the ongoing delivery of existing 
essential services; evaluating the impact of injectable buprenorphine 
(Buvidal); and establishing a recovery plan for substance misuse services.  
Data released on 14 October showed that drug misuse deaths reduced this 
year from 208 to 165 (a drop of 21% and the lowest number of drug misuse 
deaths reported since 2014) but – in light of Covid – the Welsh Government is 
clear that through the work of our National Implementation Board for Drug 
Poisoning Prevention we must take the necessary actions to further reduce 
these avoidable deaths. 

 
C – Dementia and Covid  
 

15. In February 2018 the Welsh Government published the Dementia Action Plan 
2018-2022. A key focus of the plan is to support people living with dementia to 
live as independently as possible in their communities, helping to avoid 
unnecessary admissions to hospital or residential care and delays when 
someone is due to be discharged from care – this is centred around a ‘team 
around the individual approach’. Actions centre across a number of themes 

Pack Page 21



5 
 

including raising awareness and understanding of dementia in the community 
(for instance Dementia Friends Initiatives) and improving the identification 
and diagnosis of dementia.  

 
16. To deliver the actions within this plan, an additional £10m a year from 2018-

19 was provided on an ongoing basis. Predominantly the money is routed 
through the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) mechanism managed by Regional 
Partnership Boards (RPBs). Within the plan there are actions that sit across 
government, supporting the vision to make Wales ‘Dementia Friendly’, this 
includes education, housing and transport.  

 
17. The Covid-19 pandemic has had an impact on those living with dementia, 

including a reduction in diagnosis of dementia over this period as only urgent 
assessments have been undertaken and a reduction in people accessing 
activities and support services. Our Dementia Oversight of Implementation 
and Impact Group’s work programme is currently focusing on those areas 
where we know the pandemic has had an impact. 

 
D – Autism and Covid 
 

18. Autistic people, families and carers may have been particularly affected by the 
restrictions imposed through the Covid-19 pandemic and the need for clear 
advice and support is all the more important.  This is demonstrated in the Left 
Stranded report recently published by the National Autistic Society (NAS) 
which highlights the experiences of autistic people and their families during 
the pandemic in the UK. 
 

19. Through the Social Services Third Sector Grant Scheme, I am supporting the 
NAS Cymru Spectrum Groups project which is establishing adult stakeholder 
groups to improve engagement and reduce isolation (funding up to £56,223 
pa).  The project is shortly conducting a further survey to establish 
engagement and support needs in Wales, particularly in relation to the impact 
of the pandemic.  
 

20. Funding to support the National Autism Team is provided through the Autism 
Strategy.  During the pandemic my officials have worked with partners such 
as the NAS to develop advice on the lockdown rules, such as guidance on 
face masks and travelling on public transport. These resources are available 
on the Autism Wales website; this work will continue as we support autistic 
people to engage with the post COVID-19 world. 

 
Statutory Code of Practice 
 

21. The draft Statutory Code of Practice on the Delivery of Autism Services 
issued for public consultation on the 21 September and closes on 
14 December this year.  Due to the pandemic, public consultation events are 
taking place on line in November to make sure that autistic people, families 
and carers have an opportunity to contribute.  I will publish a consultation 
summary report early in 2021 which will contain my proposals for responding 
to the feedback received.  

Pack Page 22

https://autismwales.org/en/


6 
 

 
22. The implementation of the Code will begin in September 2021. My officials are 

already developing an implementation plan with partners, which will update 
the current autism strategy delivery plan. I am also establishing a new Autism 
Advisory Group to provide advice on delivery of the code; membership will 
include autistic people and representative organisations.  

 
Children’s Neurodevelopmental Services 
 

23. In terms of neurodevelopmental (ND) services, health boards report that in 
many ways assessments did not completely stop, however, in all areas the 
volume reduced.  The challenge continues for teams to progress an ND 
assessment which has a central component of assessing function in a social 
setting, in a context where society in many ways is not functioning socially. 
During this time referrals to ND teams have continued to be logged with 
young people being added to waiting lists. 
 

24. Most teams continued to some degree gathering information on new cases 
which had been referred, as this is desk based activity.  Similarly, many were 
able to undertake assessments where there was good existing knowledge 
and previous contacts. 
 

25. In some areas it remains difficult to undertake the observations required as 
part of the ND assessment with face to face appointments limited to clinical 
need/urgency. For example, some schools are still restricting who can go on 
site to observe. 
 

E – Children and Obesity 
 

Healthy Weight 
 

26. Healthy Wales is our long-term strategy to prevent and reduce obesity in 
Wales. We are taking a long-term approach to enabling and supporting 
behaviour change, recognising the multi-component approach required to 
make a difference. Whilst the impact of the Covid pandemic has inevitably 
slowed progress on the actions in the 2020-22 delivery plan, I am committed 
to taking forward action. I have set out five renewed priorities for the 
remainder of 2020-21 which will work across partners to bring back on track a 
number of delivery areas and to consider the impacts of the epidemic. I will 
also be chairing a meeting of our next Healthy Weight Board in November, 
which will aim to establish what our priorities for the 2021-22 period will focus 
upon and I will publish a refreshed plan and timeline by early 2021. This will 
be accompanied by a further investment of £5.5m to focus and deliver the 
priorities that I will set out. 

 
Covid-19 

 
27. Covid-19 has impacted upon both physical and mental health of children and 

families across Wales and I am committed to develop approaches which 
focus upon health inequalities. I want to see a reversal in levels of childhood 

Pack Page 23



7 
 

obesity and for our children to be starting school at a healthy weight. That is 
why the focus on the crucial early years is essential, particularly when we 
know that positive behaviours at this stage can stay with us throughout our 
lives. In particular, I know that many families find it difficult to make healthy 
choices and that can be due to a number of barriers. Through the actions of 
the delivery plan, in 2021- 2022 I will explore how we can support and enable 
positive choices and reduce barriers, including through a targeted Children 
and Families Programme in three pilot areas across Wales. This will work with 
families and a range of partners locally in order to enable and develop small, 
but significant, changes for a family to support making healthier choices. 
Alongside this work, I am committed to consult upon legislative options 
through our healthy food environment in areas such as price promotions, 
calorie labelling and planning to consider how we can make the healthier 
choice, the easier choice.  

 
28. I also want to improve and enhance service provision. We have invested 

£2.9m for 2020-21 and 2021-22 through local health boards and partners to 
implement Obesity Pathways. This includes locally-developed services at the 
prevention and early intervention stage, which are evidenced based. Part of 
this intervention will be the delivery in some health boards of a national 
maternal obesity intervention. My officials will also be working with local health 
boards to develop comprehensive, specialised level three services for children 
and families which will ensure that the range of professionals, such as 
dietitians, psychologists, clinicians and health practitioners, are utilised in a 
multi-disciplinary environment through specialist and targeted services. 
 

F - Health and the Welsh Language 
 

29. Health and language go hand in hand.  Receiving services through the 
medium of Welsh is a key component of care, especially when discussing 
sensitive and emotional concerns. The use of the Welsh language in health 
and social care is not just a matter of choice but can also be a matter of need.  
It is especially important for many vulnerable people and their families who 
need to access services in their first language, such as older people with 
dementia or stroke who may lose their second language. When discussing 
mental health, one of the most important things is being able to communicate 
effectively in order to express feelings, thoughts and emotions. This includes 
the language used. 
 
More than just words 

 
30. More than just words is the Welsh Government’s strategic framework to 

strengthen Welsh language provision in health and social care.  
 

31. Reports on progress on the actions in More than just words have showed 
developments and actions in a number of areas. It is evident that questions 
have moved from the ‘why’ to the ‘how’.   The ‘how’ provide ongoing 
challenges in achieving some of the expectations, especially consistently 
across services and geographical areas and include: 

 

Pack Page 24



8 
 

• Recruiting staff with Welsh language skills 

• Ensuring staff take up of the language training that is available; 

• Confidence of staff who have Welsh language skills to use them; 

• Weaknesses in using and analysing information including population 
profiles to inform planning and commissioning; 

• Ensuring Welsh language considerations are mainstreamed into IT/digital 
systems; and 

• Recording and systems to support patient/user language choice 
especially across services. 

 
Evaluation of More than just words 

 
32. An evaluation of More than just words has been commissioned to assess 

progress and effectiveness of the active offer and delivery of Welsh language 
services in health and care. The evaluation work was paused between April 
and July due to the pandemic but has now resumed with the final evaluation 
report expected in early 2021.  The final report will take into account the 
impact of Covid on Welsh language services and the priorities for Welsh 
language provision post-Covid. 
 
Impact of Covid-19 on Welsh language services in health and social care 

 
33. According to the Welsh Language Officers in the NHS Covid-19 has had an 

impact on their organisations’ ability to provide Welsh language services.  
Staff from the Welsh language teams within some health bodies have been 
redeployed to support the response and this has potentially led to the loss of 
momentum to progress Welsh language developments. 
 

34. Some health boards / trusts have reported that the amount of translation work 
has increased during the pandemic and whilst this has been prioritised, 
developments in other areas - including increasing more personalised health 
and care services in Welsh - have been impacted. This will potentially impact 
on developing work under the Welsh Language Standards including 
developing actions to increase the level of consultations/ services available in 
Welsh. 

 
35. Some of the concerns raised by stakeholders in relation to Welsh language 

services in health and care during the pandemic have related to the impact on 
the more vulnerable, for example, patients with dementia who are more reliant 
on support from families in providing Welsh language support. 

 
36. However there have been more positive experiences as well with the majority 

of health boards reporting an increase in the number taking part in online 
Welsh language training. Betsi Cadwaladr health board is considering 
developing more online training opportunities with the Welsh language tutor 
looking at different ways to reconnect with staff. 
 

37. The pandemic has led to an increase in the use of technology in providing 
healthcare, and although ensuring that the Welsh language is a consideration 
in these developments from the outset is a challenge, it is also an opportunity. 

Pack Page 25



9 
 

 
Mental Health 

 
38. The Together for Mental Health strategy is being reviewed to ensure the 

actions respond to any new challenges as a result of Covid-19. I have asked 
that health boards and local authorities examine the impact of Covid-19 on 
Welsh language provision including delivery of the ‘Active Offer’. This will 
include the impact of relatives / friends being unable to visit/ attend 
appointments to provide Welsh language support. 

 
Welsh medium clinical assessments 

 
39. The Welsh Government Dementia Action Plan 2018-2022 includes an action 

to undertake work on Welsh medium clinical assessments. The Commissioner 
has also raised concerns about the availability of standardised assessments 
and tools in Welsh more generally, including the findings identified in the 
report about Welsh Speakers’ Dementia Care. 
 

40. Discussions were held earlier this year with colleagues from Hywel Dda and 
Bangor University on the delivery of standardised tools for cognitive 
assessment for people across the ranges of age and impairment whose 
preferred language is Welsh. I am now considering options for taking the work 
forward, including commissioning a scoping study for dementia clinical 
assessments. 
 

41. My officials recently met with members of the Cymdeithas yr Iaith/Welsh 
Language Society Health Group to discuss their concerns about clinical 
assessments in Welsh, and to update on our proposals. They welcomed my 
intention to commission the scoping study, and made some helpful 
recommendations and suggestions to strengthen this study. 

 

Pack Page 26



Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr un iaith. 
Ni fydd defnyddio’r naill iaith na’r llall yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and will respond to correspondence in the same language. 
Use of either language will not lead to a delay. 

Dyddiad /Date:  15th October 2020  
Gofynnwch am/Please ask for: Stewart Blythe 
Llinell uniongyrchol/Direct line: 029 20468637 
Ebost/Email: stewart.blythe@wlga.gov.uk 

Dr Dai Lloyd MS 
Chair, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

Via E-mail 

Dear Dai, 

At the recent Health, Social Care and Sport Committee evidence session I 
committed to providing an update on the status of payments of the £500 bonus to 
social care workers. As we touched upon during the evidence session this is a 
complex and challenging scheme to deliver, with an estimated 66,000 payments 
to be made to staff working across thousands of different employers and has 
required close working between local government and Welsh Government to 
deliver.  

Through the delivery of the scheme a number of on-going challenges continue to 
be faced, including: how to make payments to eligible personal assistants who 
provided care for people who have subsequently passed away; and the issue of 
locating eligible staff who have changed employment.  

Another significant challenge has been managing the effect of the payment on the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). This is because the care workers payment is 
included in the calculation used to determine earnings that are used to calculate 
benefits. As such the payment is likely to adversely affect the benefits of care 
workers that receive the payment. Most benefits are not devolved and are 
managed by the UK Government, but CTRS is a devolved benefit. Therefore, care 
workers in receipt of CTRS are likely to lose it in the month in which they receive 
the payment. The Welsh Government is unable to amend CTRS regulations to 
adjust for this and so has been working with the WLGA and local authorities to 
provide compensation for care workers who will lose their CTRS entitlement as a 
result of receiving this payment. This is likely to result in a small additional grant, 
of up to £300k, to local authorities who will make compensation payments to 
those affected. I understand that Ministers should receive advice on this shortly 
on this. 

As of 25 September, based on returns made by local government to Welsh 
Government, local authorities have provided funding to employers to pay the 
£500 payment to around 22,000 care workers. This represents around one third of 
the expected number of payments at a value of around £14m. As of this date 
there were nine outstanding returns to be submitted by local authorities. Local 
authorities expect the majority of the remaining funding, approximately 44,000 
payments, to be delivered during October. The latest scheme cost estimates 
suggest it will consume all of the £40m budget set aside for the scheme, but there 

Dr Chris Llewelyn 
Prif Weithredwr 
Chief Executive 

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru 
Tŷ Llywodraeth Leol 
Rhodfa Drake 
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG 
Ffôn: 029 2046 8600 

Welsh Local Government 
Association 
Local Government House 
Drake Walk 
CARDIFF CF10 4LG 
Tel: 029 2046 8600 

wlga.cymru 
wlga.wales 

@WelshLGA 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 3 / Paper 3

Pack Page 27

Agenda Item 5.1

mailto:stewart.blythe@wlga.gov.uk


 

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr un iaith. 
Ni fydd defnyddio’r naill iaith na’r llall yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and will respond to correspondence in the same language. 
Use of either language will not lead to a delay.  

 

 

remains a risk that costs could increase beyond current estimates and exceed the budget, an issue 
we will continue to monitor. 
 
I trust that this update is helpful to both you and the rest of the Committee members in terms of 
the latest position in delivering the £500 payment to social care workers in Wales. 
 
 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Dr Chris Llewelyn 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive 

Pack Page 28



Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol 

Aneurin Bevan 
University Health Board 

Our Ref: GE/jac Direct Line: 01633 435958 30 September 2020 

Dr Dai Lloyd AM 
Chair, Health, Social Care & Support Committee 

National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 

CF99 lNA 

Dear Dr Lloyd 

Re: Grange University Hospital 

I refer to your letter dated 22nd September 2020 regarding the provision of 
rest facilities at the Grange University Hospital (GUH). 

The Health Board is currently in detailed discussions with representatives of 
the medical workforce on the provision of in- shift and post- shilt rest facilities 
in line with the relatively new All Wales Fatigue and Facilities Charter agreed 

with the BMA. 

Currently there are rooms spread throughout the hospital that can be used for 

rest if required. Naturally there is also a dedicated junior doctors' mess with 
kitchen facilities and a range of chairs and recliners. 

The facilities at the GUH do not replicate what is provided on other sites as the 
service delivery and workforce models have changed i.e. very few junior 
doctors are now on call and therefore require on call bedrooms for this 

purpose. However we recognise the importance and benefits of providing 
appropriate rest facilities for our staff and the impact this can have on patient 
care. 
Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 

Pencadlys, 
Ysbyty Sant Cadog 
Ffordd Y Lodj 
Caerllion 
Casnewydd 
De Cymru NP18 3XQ 
Ff6n: 01633 436700 
E-bost: abhb.enqu1ries@wales.nhs.uk 

� NHS 

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

Headquarters 
St Cadoc's Hospital 
Lodge Road 
Caerleon 
Newport 
South Wales NP18 3XQ 
Tel No: 01633 436700 
Email: abhb.enqu1ries@wales.ni1s. uk 

o!j;:> GIGij Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 
Aneurin Bevan University Health Board is the operational name of Aneurin Bevan University Local Health Board 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 4 / Paper 4

Pack Page 29

Agenda Item 5.2



To this end it has been agreed to provide twenty seven sleep pods within the 
Wellbeing and Education Centre located within the GUH in readiness for the 
early opening in November 2020. This will be an interim measure pending 
further discussions on a more permanent solution. 

I hope this gives you assurance that the Health Board is committed to 
delivering rest facilities at the GUH in accordance with the principles of the 
Fatigue and Facilities Charter. 

Yours sincerely 

Geraint Evans 
Director of Workforce & Organisational Development/Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gweithlu a Datblygiad Sefydliadol 

Pack Page 30



Vaughan Gething MS 
Minister for Health and Social Services 
Welsh Government 

23 October 2020 

Dear Vaughan, 

Nutrition Labelling Composition and Standards Provisional Common Framework 

I am writing to confirm that the External Affairs and Additional Legislation 
Committee intends to scrutinise the Nutrition Labelling Composition and 
Standards Provisional Common Framework, that you shared with us on 9 October 
2020. 

To initiate the scrutiny process, I enclose a set of questions for you to consider. I 
would be grateful for a response to these questions by the 8 November 2020. 

I look forward to engaging with you on the scrutiny of this common framework 
and to receiving your response to the initial set of questions enclosed. 

I have copied this letter to Dai Lloyd MS, Chair of the Health, Social Care, and Sport 
Committee. 

Yours sincerely, 

David Rees MS 
Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 5 / Paper 5

Pack Page 31

Agenda Item 5.3



 

Questions 

What the framework is 

1. What form does the framework take, i.e. is it a Memorandum of 
Understanding, a concordat, a legislative framework or a combination of 
documents? 

2. On what basis has the form for the framework been chosen? 

3. Have all relevant framework documents (including documents that will be 
used by governments to apply and interpret the framework) been published? 

4. Will the framework require any further legislation in future? 

5. What impact will the form chosen have on the framework’s operation? 

6. How have the governments ensured the framework will be clear and 
accessible for citizens and Members?  

What the framework does 

7. Why is a framework needed for this policy area? 

8. The Joint Ministerial Committee agreed principles for when frameworks would 
be necessary in 2017, including enabling the functioning of the UK internal 
market and ensuring compliance with international obligations. Which of 
these principles apply to this framework?  

9. What does EU law and policy in this area currently do? Does the framework 
replicate this/these function(s) in full or in part? 

10. What are the policy objectives of the framework? 

11. In what ways does the framework change the Welsh Government’s executive 
competence? How is this different from the position under EU law? 

12. In what ways does the framework change the Senedd’s legislative 
competence? How is this different from the position under EU law? 

13. What scope for divergence will the framework allow? Is this wider or narrower 
than the scope for divergence under EU law? 

Pack Page 32



 

14. If the scope for divergence is different from the scope for divergence under EU 
law, why is that? 

15. Will the framework have any impact on existing or planned Welsh legislation 
and/or policies? 

16. What will the financial implications of the framework be? 

How the framework was developed 

17. How did the governments engage with stakeholders in preparing the outline 
framework?  

18. As part of that process, how did the Welsh Government itself engage with 
stakeholders? 

19. How does the framework reflect the responses of stakeholders, including 
stakeholders in Wales? 

20. Are there any ongoing negotiations in relation to any elements of the 
framework? 

Interaction with domestic law and policy 

21. How does the framework interact with existing domestic legislation? 

22. How does the framework interact with retained EU law in this policy area? 

23. Does the framework interact with any existing intergovernmental agreements? 

Interaction with international law and international agreements 

24. Does the framework interact with any existing international obligations or 
agreements? 

25. If so, does the framework ‘ensure compliance with international obligations’? 
How? 

26. How will the framework interact with or be impacted by any future UK 
negotiations on trade or in other areas?  

27. How does the framework interact with the Ireland and Northern Ireland 
Protocol? 

Pack Page 33



 

28. What would happen if the framework conflicted with an international 
agreement?  

29. If the framework needs to be amended to reflect a new international 
agreement, what revision process will be engaged? 

30. How will the Senedd be able to contribute to that revision process? 

Interaction with the Internal Market Bill 

31. What impact would the UK Government’s Internal Market Bill (i.e. to enshrine 
in law the principles of mutual recognition and non-discrimination) have on 
the framework? 

Operation 

32. What will the roles of the different governments in the operation of the 
framework be? 

33. Will any other bodies, public or otherwise, be involved in the operation of the 
framework? 

Governance and dispute resolution 

34. What will the roles of the governments be in the oversight and governance of 
the framework? 

35. What will the roles of any other bodies be in the oversight and governance of 
the framework?  

36. What is the dispute resolution mechanism for the framework? How does it 
compare to dispute resolution mechanisms in other frameworks? 

37. Do you consider the dispute resolution mechanism to be robust enough for its 
intended purpose? 

Review and revision 

38. What arrangements for regular review and revision of the framework will there 
be? 

39. How will continued adherence to the framework principles be measured? 

Pack Page 34



 

40. How will the Senedd be able to contribute to the review and revision process 
for the framework? 

41. How will stakeholders be able to contribute to the review and revision process 
for the framework? 

42. What is the process for discussing and agreeing any future changes to the 
framework? 

43. If changes are made in future, how will the Senedd be notified? What scrutiny 
procedures will apply to the changes? 

Pack Page 35



Elin Jones MS 
Y Llywydd and Chair of the Business Committee 

22 October 2020 

Dear Elin  

Scrutiny of Covid-19 regulations 

Thank you for your letter of 8 October 2020, which we considered at our meetings on 12 
and 19 October 2020.  

Your letter sought to ascertain whether it would be appropriate for “the Welsh 
Government to flag new Regulations where the underlying principle had already been 
scrutinised, to enable a decision to be taken by the Business Committee about the level 
of further scrutiny which might be required before the debate.” As a consequence, you 
asked for our views on whether there was a possibility of enabling certain Covid-related 
Regulations to be prioritised for debate in such circumstances. 

We do not believe the option suggested by the Business Committee to be appropriate 
for several reasons. In our view, approval for any form of legislation should not be on an 
‘in principle’ basis. We do not therefore see ourselves having a role in endorsing (or 
rejecting) any assessment by the Welsh Government that a particular set of regulations 
were in principle the same as a previous set. Moreover, the value of such an assessment 
would in our view be questionable, given that while a new set of regulations may follow 
a similar policy objective, they could still be subject to reporting points under Standing 
Orders 21.2 or  21.3.  

We believe our scrutiny of all Covid-19 regulations has been efficient and timely. We have 
reported on most regulations subject to the made affirmative procedure within 14 days 
of the instrument having been laid. In the majority of cases, this has enabled the Senedd 
to vote on whether the regulations should remain in force well before the 28 days 
permitted by the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 and the 40 days permitted 
by the Coronavirus Act 2020 (which the Senedd consented to in March this year). We  

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 6 / Paper 6

Pack Page 36

Agenda Item 5.4



 

would also wish to highlight that the majority of made affirmative regulations have been 
laid on a Friday; this coupled with our Monday morning meeting slot means that there 
has inevitably been a week’s gap between laying and committee scrutiny, irrespective of 
the work needed to prepare reports for committee consideration. We also draw 
attention to the comments of the Minister for Health and Social Services, Vaughan 
Gething MS, in Plenary on 6 October 2020, which we welcome:  

 “I also welcome the fact that the committee has, from time to time, helped us 
 with consistency in legislative provisions. That's part of the point of the scrutiny. 
 We're making these regulations in a rapid manner because of the fast-changing 
 picture with coronavirus, and I think there's value in having the committee 
 undertaking its scrutiny function before the legislature is then able to exercise its 
 function in determining whether these regulations can continue or not.” 

Nevertheless, we have considered a range of options to facilitate an even quicker 
scrutiny process. We discussed whether meeting more than once a week would facilitate 
the scrutiny of regulations laid by the Welsh Government at different points during the 
previous working week. Given the Welsh Government’s practice of laying the majority of 
made affirmative regulations on a Friday, we also considered whether it would be 
feasible  to move our Committee’s regular meeting slot to a Wednesday morning, in 
order to consider regulations made on the previous Friday and to lay a report in time for 
a debate that afternoon. We also discussed whether we could give a formal 
commitment to report on made affirmative regulations within a 14-day deadline.  

However, we concluded that such approaches are very likely to give rise to significant 
timetabling issues for the Welsh Government and Senedd Members. Furthermore, given 
the complexity of this legislation, any formalisation of our existing arrangements for the 
scrutiny of Covid-related legislation needs to be considered alongside the backdrop of 
an increasing volume of legislation to deal with the UK’s exit from the EU, not least 
because such formalisation could potentially require additional resource or different 
working patterns. This latter point is particularly relevant given that our remit means that 
our work programme is currently heavily constrained by the necessary and important 
scrutiny of subordinate legislation related to EU exit and legislative consent memoranda 
for UK EU exit related Bills, including the constitutionally significant UK Internal Market 
Bill. 

We recognise that matters related to the pandemic have been prioritised in government 
time during plenary sessions. We also considered whether the Welsh Government could 
consider using the draft affirmative procedure if at all possible when making Covid-
related legislation under section 45C of the 1984 Act. Although we appreciate that this 
may not be feasible, we would encourage the Welsh Government to consider whether 
opportunities do exist for its use.    

  

Pack Page 37

https://record.assembly.wales/Plenary/6592#C318049


 

We will continue to do whatever we can to ensure the scrutiny of Covid-related 
regulations is conducted in a timely manner. However, we do not believe that our 
scrutiny function should be compromised in any circumstances.    

I am copying this letter to the Chairs of all committees.  

Yours sincerely   

 

Mick Antoniw AM 
Chair 
 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

Pack Page 38



Maternity services in Wales: 

What CHCs have heard during the 

coronavirus pandemic 

October 2020 

W 

Board of Community Health Councils in Wales 
Comunn 

www.communityhealthcouncils.org.uk 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 7 / Paper 7

Pack Page 39

Agenda Item 5.5



 
 

2 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Accessible 

formats 
 

This report is also available in 

Welsh. If you would like this 

publication in an alternative format 

and/or language, please contact 

us.  You can download it from our 

website or ask for a copy by 

contacting our office. 
  

Pack Page 40



 
 

3 
 

45 

 

 

Contents 

 

Introduction .................................. 4 

What we did.................................. 6 

What we heard………………………………….7 

Learning from what we heard ........ 45 

Feedback………………………………………….47 

 

 

Thanks……………………………………………..47 
 
 
 
 

Contact details ............................ 48 

Pack Page 41

file:///S:/Admin%20Folders/National%20Reports/National%20Themes%202018-2019/Autism/National%20CHC%20report%20Autism%20(March%202019%20-%20english)%20V2.0.docx%23_Toc3382424


 
 

4 
 

Introduction 
 

Community Health Councils (CHC) are the independent 

watchdog of NHS services in Wales. We encourage and 

support people to have a voice in the design and delivery of 

NHS services.  

 

CHCs seek to work with the NHS, inspection, and regulatory 

bodies. We provide an important link between those who 

plan and deliver NHS services in Wales, those who inspect 

and regulate it and those who use it.  

 

CHCs hear from the public in many different ways.  Before 

the covonavirus pandemic, we regularly visited NHS services 

to hear from people while they were receiving care and 

treatment.  CHCs also heard from people at local community 

events, and through community representatives and groups.   

 

Since the coronavirus pandemic, CHCs have focused on 

engaging with people in different ways.   

 

This includes surveys, apps, video conferencing and social 

media to hear from people directly about their views and 

experiences of NHS services, as well as through community 

representatives and groups.   

 

There are 7 CHCs in Wales; each one represents the “patient 

and public voice” in a different part of Wales. 

 

 
  

Pack Page 42



 
 

5 
 

  

Pack Page 43



 
 

6 
 

What we did 
 
During the coronavirus pandemic, one of the ways people have been 

able to share feedback with us about their views and experiences of 

NHS care is by completing our national survey, or by contacting us 

via phone, email and website. 

 

The feedback we receive directly through this national survey is only 

one way in which CHCs hear from people locally about their NHS 

services, including maternity care.  

 

CHCs pick up feedback and issues in other ways, eg., through our 

enquiries and complaints advocacy service, local community 

networks, community representatives and groups, and monitoring of 

health board activities, including feedback and complaints.  

 

So that services can respond quickly, CHCs share with their health 

boards what they are hearing from people in their local communities 

on an on-going basis.  At a national level, we meet with the Welsh 

Government weekly to discuss what we are hearing across Wales and 

the actions needed. 
 

 

 

  

Pack Page 44

http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/899/page/100694


 
 

7 
 

What we have heard during 

the pandemic 
 
Throughout the pandemic, people have been incredibly supportive of 

their NHS staff.  CHCs consistently heard wide public recognition and 

appreciation of the commitment and determination of healthcare 

workers to provide the best possible care and treatment to people 

across Wales during this unprecedented situation.   

 

Overall, people knew and understood that the way they would usually 

access and receive maternity services needed to change so that the 

NHS could respond effectively to coronavirus.   

 

People also knew that some of the important things they value in the 

way in which maternity services are usually provided were no longer 

possible in the same way.   

 

Whilst people told us they understood things had to change, we also 

heard how this was affecting them.  We heard that for some people 

this was not only affecting their experience of antenatal care and 

labour, but also on their on-going care and support after birth.   

 

They may also be missing out on developing some of the supportive 

and life changing relationships new parents often make with other 

new parents in the community. 

  

Overall, this can increase their feelings of vulnerability and 

fundamentally on their mental health and well-being. 

 

Here is one woman’s experience of pregnancy that shows much of 

what we heard in the earlier stages of the pandemic: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Pack Page 45



 
 

8 
 

Here is one woman’s experience of pregnancy that shows much of 

what we heard in the earlier stages of the pandemic: 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

             

I am currently 35 weeks pregnant, 

I am under consultant led care and 

can honestly say the care I have received 

               during the pandemic has been brilliant. 

 

  I have growth scans every 4 weeks, followed by an 

appointment with my consultants registrar.  Scans and blood  

    tests are now carried out in 1 department, which I feel is  

   much better as walking to different departments around the  

   hospital while heavily pregnant with SPD and pre-existing back    

    conditions can be very difficult. 

 

  I am also having appointments with my midwife at my GP  

  surgery every 2 weeks, which again has been faultless. My  

   only "complaint" is that my husband cannot attend any  

    scans or appointments with me, although I completely  

         understand the reasons for it, it is still  

very upsetting to not have him involved  

in the scans or appointments. 
 

Pack Page 46



 
 

9 
 

We also saw some differences in the approaches taken by individual 

health boards, both in terms of the level and nature of involvement of 

partners and the level of support for and encouragement of home 

births during this period.  As the NHS worked together in response to 

the situation, we started to see a more consistent picture. 

 

During pregnancy 
 
We heard from people who felt fully supported and cared for 

throughout their pregnancy, despite the challenges everyone faced: 
 
  

“I had a very good experience  
    throughout my pregnancy. The level of  
care was fantastic. I was under consultant led    

   care and both midwives and doctors were  
 fantastic. They were really thorough and I felt like 
I was really looked after.  
 
My community midwife was again fantastic. She 
was always there when needed and if she couldn’t 
answer the phone she would always ring me back 
as soon as she could.  
 
I felt really looked after. On the occasions I  
needed to be monitored (due to reduced  

  movements), every midwife looking after  
     me was very caring, explained  
           everything to me and were  
                 really supportive.  
 

Pack Page 47



 
 

10 
 

 
“My community midwife and 

the midwives I've seen at 

hospital appointments have 

been so lovely and have made 

me feel at ease during this 

difficult time.”   

 

Pack Page 48



 
 

11 
 

 “I had my baby girl  

     on 10th June 2020. 

Every appointment (and I 

had a lot) I felt safe and 

everything run so smoothly 

so I was never hanging 

around the hospital longer 

than I needed to be.”  
 

 
“Ongoing  

 antenatal care has  

been amazing. Plenty  
of friendly advice and  
support in these  

worrying times”  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pack Page 49



 
 

12 
 

Some people told us their appointments and on-going care continued 
successfully, even if it took a little getting used to: 
  

 

“   I was in my second trimester at the start  

of the lockdown now into my last couple of  

weeks. I've been lucky that all of my antenatal  

appointments have continued as planned, just  

without my husband being able to attend 

 with me.” 
 

      
 

        “I had my 28-week scan at   

   Princess of Wales hospital on 

Monday 6th April. I cannot 

speak highly enough of the care 

I received, all staff were in full 

PPE, which was initially a little 

daunting, but I was put at ease 

immediately and the care I 

received throughout my visit 

was superb”  

 

 

 

 

 
 

  Midwives at  
      Princess of Wales  
   were fantastic, my 
community midwives in 
the Glan y Mor team 
went above and beyond    
 to ensure I received  
    the best care 
 
     
    

 

 

Pack Page 50



 
 

13 
 

  

Pack Page 51



 
 

14 
 

 
“I understand that  

things have been very testing for the  
                     health board however; I have found myself  

 with little support during the pandemic. This is my 
      first pregnancy and I am currently 25 weeks pregnant,  
 I have not had a face-to-face appointment with my midwife 
since I was 7 weeks pregnant.  

 
I have been feeling a bit let down and feel as though I do not want 

to waste the services time for simple queries as they are probably 
dealing with many emergencies.  I think that during this time it 
may have been helpful to have more contact than normal with a 
midwife, as we are anxious and nervous about what is  
happening. I understand face-to-face appointments are not 
possible but a couple of phone calls may have helped. I also  
called my doctors surgery at 20 weeks pregnant as I  
  thought I had a urine infection, the surgery advised me  
    they didn't even know I was pregnant.  
 

   I know I'm not the only expecting mother  
currently feeling this way but I do feel  
       slightly let down.” 

         
 
 

 
 

For others, the changes that had to be made quickly at the start of 
the pandemic meant that all of a sudden they didn’t have the level of 
contact they had been expecting.  This meant they felt more anxious 
and a little forgotten about.   
 
If this was a first pregnancy, not wanting to be a bother and not 
feeling able to contact health services to ask questions made things 
more difficult: 
  

Pack Page 52



 
 

15 
 

Sometimes more experienced mothers also felt the impact of less 

contact, particularly if they had been told their pregnancy was high 

risk: 

  

     “Shortly after finding out  
   I was pregnant the UK went into a  

  lockdown due to the coronavirus and because  
     of this our maternity care practically ceased. From 

normal routine appointments to scans and consultant             
appointments.  

 
      Personally, I feel like we have been forgotten about. Before the  
    coronavirus, these appointments were essential for the welfare of     
    mother and baby.  
 
  How is it now acceptable for women to [not] receive these  
 services? I am now currently 8 month’s pregnant, high risk and 
consultant led.  

 
  I have had growth scans cancelled, I’ve seen a consultant  
  once at 9 weeks, I have had one antenatal check-up. I am  
    a third time mother so I kind of know what I’m doing 
     but I’m no professional and I feel like we have just  

been left in the dark.  
 

In my opinion if we need these essential  
   appointments beforehand why on  
          earth have we not had them  

now.” 
 

 
 

Pack Page 53



 
 

16 
 

 Most of all, we heard about the anxiety and impact on families of not 

being able to have partners and loved ones involved in antenatal 

appointments, including scans:   

  

“I think that all appts  

  while pregnant should have the  

   partner in attendance. They have to drive  

us there in most cases so could just as easily  

          come in and not touched anything same as us. No    

       difference with them being in the car, as I would have  

     brought it in if we had it.  

 

  They have missed so much and it’s been so anxious to do it 

all alone. There should be strict rules that when they come  

in as before. One person bringing you to the appt is no 

different to them coming in. I waited so long at my appt I   

 would have rathered sat outside till my turn, had you  

  phone me then have us both up, in and out efficiently      

    than make him sit in the car for an hour  

      worrying something was wrong they stay in  

          and glove/mask up if needed.” 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Pack Page 54



 
 

17 
 

 

  

 

 

  “Allow fathers to be at scans & 

appointments, but more importantly  

through the whole labour and post  

natal care at the hospital, this is just as 

important for the dads as well as the  

mams”   

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

              

         “I feel that my partner isn’t involved, 

   and missing out on appointments. I am also very 

worried about being alone during labour and having 

no visitors if I have to stay in for after care.  Let 

partners be there for women during the whole  

  of labour.”   

 

 

 

 

 

Pack Page 55



 
 

18 
 

  

Pack Page 56



 
 

19 
 

Giving birth 
 
We heard from people who were very grateful to healthcare workers 
for the care and support they provided when giving birth during the 
pandemic: 
  

 
           We are so lucky to have        

      such wonderful maternity staff  

   working in our health board and  

  I’m truly grateful for everything  

   they have done for us as a  

     family”  
    
 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 

“The care I 

   received when I had 

   my son was excellent  

  and I thank the  

 midwives and doctors  

   of princess of  

        Wales.”  

 
 
 
 

 
 

“During the birth everyone 

was very calm even though 

they had the stress of the 

coronavirus pandemic on 

their minds. I had a 

wonderful birth experience 

and I can’t thank those 

involved enough.  
 

Pack Page 57



 
 

20 
 

Once again, in the earlier stages of the pandemic women told us they 
were worried about giving birth without having their birth partner 
with them throughout, and were not always clear why their 
attendance couldn’t be managed safely:   
 
 
  

 

           “Continue to allow birth        

    partners if they are symptom free.  

  Child birth can be a very stressful  

 time and having the support of the 

  birth partner goes a long way.” 
 

                                  “Also I work in a  
                     hospital I have never seen it so  

     empty, think birthing partners should be 
 allowed in as long as there are no symptoms.  

 
I get that everyone’s scared but I’m just as scared to  
go into the hospital and possibly catching it just as  
much as the ward is scared of us patients - and if  
most pregnant women are like myself the only  
people I’ve been around in the past month is  
my husband who is also self-isolating and my  
midwife for appointments so I don’t see why 
   my husband can’t be there”  
 
 
 
 
 

20 
Pack Page 58



 
 

21 
 

  

Pack Page 59



 
 

22 
 

We heard how staff had worked hard to support women in labour who 
were without their partners, and how it had affected their partners 
not being there: 
  

                            “My son and his  

                 partner had their first child at the Royal  

         Gwent Hospital she had a difficult birth and  

     Labour, and whilst my son was not allowed through  

  the virus to be present they both said that the staff  

    were excellent although my son felt left out of  

     the event but understood.”   

 

 

 
 

“When I went in to 

       labour I was petrified of being alone  

  but the midwives filled the void of my  

husband not being there until he was 

 finally able to come in when I reached  

 5cm.”  
 

Pack Page 60



 
 

23 
 

Other people’s experiences were more mixed.  Some people felt the 
impact on their care when staff were busy and under pressure. 

 

   “I can honestly say that  
my experience in hospital was  

   awful. I was induced on Friday 17th this 
 was my first . 

 

I felt like the midwifes had no time for you, every 
     time you asked for something it was like it was a  
 loads of trouble. When I started going into labour I was  
told to just go to bed, they only believed me when my  
waters had broken.  

 
    After my waters had gone my contractions came really fast  
   and when I asked if someone could sit with me the midwife  
   only sat with me for 5 minutes. I was scared and in pain  

   and left alone. When they did finally examine me I was  
    4cm and then told I could call my partners who had a  
    1hour 10 minute drive but I went against midwife and  
     had already called him and he was [wait]ing for me.  

 
I had to walk to the labour ward. When I got to  
   labour ward they were fantastic best care  
     you could wish for I ended up having  
         emergency C-section.”   

      

 
 
 
 
     

 

Pack Page 61



 
 

24 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
      “I was induced, and then  
                ended up having an emergency  
           C-section. I felt as a first time mum I  
      wasn’t supported by your staff and wasn’t  
    listened to. I was very scared going into hospital  
  by myself knowing my partner wasn’t allowed in  
  till in labour.  
 
   Some of your staff are amazing, some  

    couldn’t care that I needed help after  
      having my c section. I have to say  
         everyone on the labour ward and in  
          theatre where amazing and I  
                cannot fault them at all.” 

 

Pack Page 62



 
 

25 
 

Care and support after birth 
 
We continue to hear about women’s anxieties because their birth 

partner is not able to stay with them after they give birth to provide 

them with help and support and to have the chance to bond with a 

new baby.  Some women who had given birth by caesarian section 

found the arrangements particularly difficult. 

 

 

                                              “Let partners in  
                                    to support and help you                     
                           through out. Your staff didn’t look  
                       after me where my partner could have  
                  supported me and I would have come out of  
               hospital less traumatised. 
 
            I feel like as the midwife don’t have time for you as             
          a first time mum you need extra support but none  
         of it was there. You could do with people to just  

           sit and help new mothers and show them how  
               to Breast feed and bottle-feed.”   

 
 
 
 

 

                    “It is also  
          distressing knowing that he       
     will not be able to stay with  
  myself and our new-born after 
birth, or visit us should we need to  
  stay in hospital for any reason.”  
 

Pack Page 63



 
 

26 
 

  

                  “Let your partner  

         come in throughout and after birth, it    

    would take strain off the midwives as they   

 could help care for you. Also have more  

helpers to help first time mums out, so  

 they are not just left by themselves.”  
 

                      “So with current restrictions on  

               birth partners remaining in the hospital  

          it’s made it harder on women. 

 

    For those recovering from c sections we need a little 

more help and as helpful as your staff think they are  

they certainly aren’t dad and I find it is affecting         

dads as well not feeling the same bond straight  

away after birth because they are having to  

    leave within 2-3 hours after having  

        surgery….”.  
 

26 
Pack Page 64



 
 

27 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

Pack Page 65



 
 

28 
 

For some people who may have had difficult experiences in the past, 
not having their partner with them was very difficult.  For others, 
their experience has had a big effect on how they feel about having 
hospital care in the future: 
  
 
                                 Partners are able to bond  
                        and help if they are at hand for as long 
                as needed. Keep the birth partners in the ward   
            but make sure they take food and drink with them  
       to prevent leaving the ward or hospital and risking  

    further chance of infection etc.  To still have the same  
  help from birth partners because it effects both parents 
equally as much…… 
 
…for those who haven’t had great birth experiences   
previously this is going to affect them even more if they  
   feel isolated and like staff are trying to take over  
      from what the dads could be doing if they just  
          remain on the ward until visiting hours  
                  are over end of the day 

 
   

     
     

 

                                   “It was the care  

                    I have when being induced and after I  
           gave birth that has affected me the most. I know  
      this is a hard time for everyone but they need to  
   understand that we have no support with us and when  
  they don’t have time to support you when you need  
   them the most. I was glad to get home after five  
    days in hospital. If I could have given birth at  
       home I would have as this experience has  
            really put me off going back into  
                        hospital in the future” 
 

28 
Pack Page 66



 
 

29 
 

For some people, not having visitors after giving birth provided them 
with time to get used to things, and felt fully supported by staff:  
  

                  “Not having visitors after the birth  
          was brilliant. You bonded with your child  
      better, and was able to breast feed and get a  
  good latch in no time. It also took away any  
   stress of not looking or feeling your best when  
     faced with excited visitors.”  

 
 
 
 

 

 
                               “The aftercare on  
                     ward 18 was also second to none.  
                I felt at ease the whole time and  
           thoroughly enjoyed the company of the staff  
        while I was kept in for 2 days.  
 
      If it wasn’t for the friendly staff within the NHS  

    I dread to think of what the alternative  
      experience would have been”  

 
 
 
 

 

Pack Page 67



 
 

30 
 

We heard how lockdown was having a big effect on how well 
supported some new parents felt after going home with their baby.  
For some people, having their partner at home more meant they 
were able to support each other as a family and enjoy time with their 
new baby.   
 
For others, not having the support of grandparents or other loved 
ones meant things were more difficult. 
 
We heard that for some people, the support available to them after 
they came home met their needs: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
           “Health visiting  
          support has been    
      excellent. Rings every  
       week”   
 

Pack Page 68



 
 

31 
 

 For others, the aftercare they received from GPs and health visitors 
has felt delayed and disjointed.  Some people felt they were missing 
important checks on how they and their baby were doing. 
 
  

 
 
                                        “My baby was 3 weeks  
                                when lockdown was announced  
                           so her 4-week visit from the HV was  
                       cancelled and the discharge appointment  

                   with the midwife was done over the phone. I  
                 obviously understand this and that her 6-week  
            appointment was also not arranged.  I have not been  
           offered a 6-week post-natal check-up, even over the  
          phone.   
 
         At her 8-week injections appointment I had to ask for  
        my baby to be weighed and it was only at this point I  
         had a red book given to me. At her 12-week injection  
         appointment, I had to ask for her to be weighed  

         again. I then had to put the weight and check the  
          chart myself and show it to the HV as she didn’t  
           want to touch the book.   
 
           After injections, when your child is screaming,  
            it’s a horrible feeling to feel like you have to  
             get out of the surgery quickly.  Not once  
               since 2 weeks has anyone asked how I  
                  am, how we’re coping at home, this  
                      could be done by a phone chat  

                           surely.  I am lucky I am a  
                            2nd time Mam with a  
                                   good support  
                                network, via video  
                                             calls.”  

 

31 
Pack Page 69



 
 

32 
 

 
  
  

 
                                   “I had my second child in  
                           mid-February. After birth I have been  

                    suffering from high blood pressure - never  
                 had a problem before. I was going to have my  
             blood pressure checked in the surgery. The Friday  
           before the lockdown, my appointment was cancelled  
         and I saw no one for 6 weeks.  
 

A Health Visitor has called us twice in the last 12  
weeks - although we received one phone call from  
her on the first day of lockdown. No one has  
 offered to weigh my daughter since she was  

    3 weeks old. I feel let down by the health  
       service and as if we have been  
            forgotten”.   

 

Pack Page 70



 
 

33 
 

  

                                             “The post-natal care and baby  
                                   checks have been minimal following having  

                            my baby such as with health visitor appointments.  
 
                      As a first time mum I think it is important to have  
                    the regular normal contact from midwives and health   
                  visitors following birth.  
 
                 We were discharged without the hearing check and this  
               was not done until my baby was 6 weeks old following  
               some conflicting communication by letter and  
                 telephone.  

 
                  The care when we have received it has been  
                        brilliant however.”   
 

 
 
 
 

 

Pack Page 71



 
 

34 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

                                                     “I have had  
                                             no post-natal check-up  
                                    at all provided by the GP. I had an  
                               emergency C-section 13 weeks ago and  
                          have not had a follow up with the GP once,                       
                       they haven't even contacted me to find out how I  
                    am.  
 
              I also have high blood pressure for which I had different    

            medication after the birth and have not been assessed/  
          reviewed once since leaving hospital.  
 
         I simply phone the surgery to order more medication and it is   
       recorded on a month by month basis. I had to chase for my  
      son's 6-8 week check even while we were at the surgery getting  
     his 8 week immunisations.  
 
     It seems to me, though yes, they have to be more sensible  
     regarding contact with patients, the support and service given  

    by GPs is the very bare minimum with no real concern for  
      the welfare of their patients who have had major surgery  
        - in my experience anyway.  
 
         Why was I not given a check-up post-surgery?   
            Give patients who have had major surgery the  
               check ups they require”  
 

34 
Pack Page 72



 
 

35 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Pack Page 73



 
 

36 
 

Care when things go wrong 
 
Luckily, in most cases pregnancy and childbirth leads to a healthy 
mother and baby.  When things do go wrong, the impact can be 
devastating and long lasting.  For any family dealing with this during 
the pandemic, the risks of not having the right support at the right 
time were higher.  For some people, while they understood the 
challenges facing the NHS during this time, their experience left them 
feeling let down: 
 

  
                                      “Due to the maternity services  
                           being cancelled and reserved for  
                     emergencies, when I suffered bleeding early on  
                in my pregnancy I was refused for an early viability  
          scan at Singleton Hospital. 6 days later I suffered a ruptured      
        ectopic which resulted in a 6 hour ambulance wait……  
 

    The scans for pregnant women should not have been cancelled or 
refused. I feel the risk of having me in hospital for 2 days, having 
open surgery without a blood transfusion afterwards carries far 
more risk than that of a 15 minute scan already being investigated 
by [] Putting Things Right team. I then had emergency  
surgery to remove my baby and right Fallopian tube. Although  
the outcome of the lost pregnancy would still have been the  
same, I would not have been subjected to the terror and  
pain of the rupture had I had the scan when it was requested  
  by my GP.  
 

   I feel let down by this and the aftercare following the  
      ordeal, of which I have had none. Once I was  
         discharged from hospital with a leaflet on  
               general miscarriage, I have not been  
                     contacted since or offered any  
                             sort of physical or mental  
                                   health support.” 
 

36 Pack Page 74



 
 

37 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                            “The delivery of baby  

                                was great then baby went to NICO  
                           and that is where things were not great. My  
                     husband was not allowed for ten days to meet his  
                 son and those ten days were extremely stressful as we  
             were in HDU with a premature sick baby. 
 
        I was asked questions everyday and night about our baby’s  
      health and decisions had to be made by doctors asking me then  
    me ringing husband. This in its self was far too much to take in and 
   cope with. And should not [have] happened.  

 
  Kept being told because of covid dads weren’t [allowed] in but  
  most days I went home to my husband and there was a huge  
   amount of staff coming and going.  
 
        We found our baby had fab care but as parents we  
           had nearly no care in the most stressful area  
                  I’ve ever been”  
 

 
                   “Under foetal medicine because I was high  
            risk, bleeding the day before was dismissed.  
 
    Next day I was forced to attend a scan ALONE to find our         
    babies heartbeat had stopped the day before (when I  
       was bleeding) and no one cared to even  
          check me.”   
 

 
 
        
 
 
 

37 
Pack Page 75



 
 

38 
 

 
 
  

 

 

     “Phoned up…. as had  

bleeding, they didn't ask my  

                      name and just said if it gets heavy  

                 to go to A&E.  

 

                 Bleeding got heavier and went to A&E in  

             Withybush on the Saturday morning. They  

          were brilliant. Saw me, reassured me and found  

        information for me and a number to ring on the       

      Monday for the early pregnancy unit/team. On the     

   Monday I phoned, again they did not even ask my      

  name.  

 

   They said they are not seeing anyone and I just  

   have to wait for a scan at 12 weeks. The bleeding    

   continued and then pain followed. I ended up  

    booking a private scan in Swansea where  

      they told me that I was having a  

         miscarriage.  

               I understand that everyone is  

                 stretched but I felt so let  

                        down.”  
 

38 
Pack Page 76



 
 

39 
 

 

Communication, advice and information 
 
Throughout the pandemic, in all areas of healthcare CHCs have heard 
most of all from people about the importance of good communication 
and easy access to clear, simple advice and information.   
 
In maternity services, we heard how grateful people were when they 
felt communication was good: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

                              “Special service. First class  
                 care. Glangwili hospital midwife makes   
             everyone feel at home and safe.  
 
  Despite the situation, the staff were so positive. 
Community staff also communicate well and offer  
   support when needed. Totally fab !! Thanks to      
      everyone.”   
 

Pack Page 77



 
 

40 
 

We also heard that in the early stages of the pandemic, people 
sometimes struggled to find the advice and information they needed. 
  

               “I think the care  
         received from midwives has      
    been fantastic. However, the lack  
  of support & information when 
antenatal classes were cancelled has 
been poor.  
 

Many first time parents like myself 

have no basic information at hand  
& won’t be able to have family to 
help.  
 

     Maybe just update the  
          website with more  
             information”   
 

            
         “Utilise TV   

     advertisement  
   locally or via news 
outlets to direct people  
on where to get the 
information they  
   need.”   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
                 “I am part of a Facebook group  
            for all Wales antenatal care and  
     although I cannot fault the care I'm  

   receiving from Swansea Bay, it seems that 
other mums to be are not receiving the 
information they need and there's a lot of 
confusion over when they'll be seen.  
 
I think there should be clear antenatal  
   guidance from all health boards”  
 

Pack Page 78



 
 

41 
 

We heard how important it is to keep up regular contact and ongoing 
communication: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

 
 
  

                           “Maintain regular contact  
                  via Skype or telephone or on  
             person with social distancing measures   
          followed and PPE. If this is a long term  
     situation there needs to be a longer term plan for  
     maternity care. I fear that things will get  
      missed if contact is not maintained.” 

 

Pack Page 79



 
 

42 
 

We heard about the importance of taking time to explain things 
without rushing, making sure information is shared between 
healthcare staff, listening and treating people as individuals: 
  

                                               “I feel like since  
                                      the virus there has been a  
                             massive change to my appointment  
                         experience saw my third midwife for my  
                     37 week appointment, and as I came through  

                 the door she asked how have I been before I could  
              say my second word she interrupted me to ask if I  
            had any symptoms in a panic tone to which I replied no. 
 
        She asked if I was sure (of course I was sure I wouldn’t  
       have come otherwise) anyway I was then told that my next     
     appointment will be on my due date where she would be  
     giving me a sweep I wasn’t asked if this was what I wanted.  
 

    My last scan appointment was rushed with not much  
   explanation to me throughout. And to add insult to injury  
    this is my first pregnancy so to potential have to spend  
    hours without my partner in hospital surrounded by  
    strangers while going through a pretty stressful  
      situation has given me a number of panic attacks  
       during my last trimester.  Also my antenatal class  
         was cancelled I have had to resort to YouTube  
          for birth advice as midwife appointments  
               are so short.”   
 

Pack Page 80



 
 

43 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

              “…… if things are  

           explained properly and staff 
        also communicate between   
       themselves things would be  
      easier to manage.  Impact on 
      us has been horrible and too  
       stressful to the point of us  
        struggling to cope.”  
 

                      “I found out I was  
              pregnant, 5 weeks. Went to NHS  
           Wales website and it said to go as  
      soon as you find out. Phoned GP to be  
    told that I need to phone maternity in the  
  hospital. Phoned maternity and they said to 
phone back in 3 weeks.  
 
Spoke to 3 different professionals and not  
one asked for my name. …. 
 
 Just ask for people's names!! I felt like              
    a number and an inconvenience,  
       not a human being.”   
 

               “I was  
        consultant led  
     and felt at times my  
  concerns were not  
  listened to or taken 
seriously which led me to 
write an official letter of 
complaint and my care 
was transferred to the 
consultant midwife [] 

 who listened and  
    put me at ease.”   

 
 
 

 

Pack Page 81



 
 

44 
 

  

Pack Page 82



 
 

45 
 

Learning from what we heard 
 
People share their experiences – good and bad – because they want 

it to make a difference.  This may be thanking healthcare workers for 

their care and support, helping to make sure a poor experience is not 

repeated, and sharing ideas and suggestions for developing services 

further. 

We have already seen how some of the things people struggled with 

as maternity services first responded to the coronavirus pandemic 

are being dealt with.  This included things like involving loved ones in 

some appointments like scans over the summer period as the 

pandemic affected less people, and providing better information on-

line.  
 

We hope the feedback people have shared helps NHS staff and others 

recognise and value what has worked well for people so far. 

The NHS in Wales also needs to drive further development and 

improvement in the areas highlighted in our report where things 

didn’t go so well.  This includes: 
 

 making sure everyone gets the support and information they 

need easily when they need it 

 actively keeping in touch and ‘checking in’ to provide the 

support women and their families need before and after giving 

birth, or when things may have gone wrong 

 understanding and responding to the individual needs of women 

and their families, including those who may have had difficult 

experiences in the past. 

 

As the coronavirus pandemic continues to affect our lives, NHS 

decision makers need to continue to think about and balance the 

impact of COVID-19 restrictions with the mental health and wellbeing 

of women and their families going through this life changing 

experience in such difficult circumstances.   
 

 
  Pack Page 83



 
 

46 
 

 
 

  

Pack Page 84



 
 

47 
 

 

Thanks 
 

We thank everyone who took the time to tell us what 

matters to them about their health and care services and to 

share their ideas.    

 

We thank the healthcare staff who made things so much 

easier for people and families giving birth during the 

pandemic. 

 
                     

 

 

“Very professional, caring and reassuring service 
From antenatal to postnatal care – simply amazing! 
 

Cannot thank the Royal Gwent enough on 
supporting us through the birth of our daughter 
through this pandemic”  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We hope they influence health and care services to recognise 

and value what they do well – and take action where they 

need to as quickly as they can so that the things that cause 

very real difficulties for people using health and care services 

are made better. 

 

 
Pack Page 85



 
 

48 
 

Feedback  

 

We’d love to hear what you think about this publication, and 

any suggestions about how we could have improved it, so we 

can use this to make our future work better. 

Contact details 
 

 
 
 

 
 
      

 

 

Board of Community Health Councils in Wales 

33 / 35 Cathedral Road 

Cardiff 

CF11 9HB 

 

 

 

02920 235 558 

 

 

 

 

enquiries@waleschc.org.uk 

 

 

 

 

www.communityhealthcouncils.org.uk 

 
 

 

 

@CHC_Wales   

 

Pack Page 86

mailto:enquiries@waleschc.org.uk
http://www.communityhealthcouncils.org.uk/


7 October 2020 

Dear Minister 

Recently, as Chair of the Health Committee, I have received representations highlighting a number 

of concerns in relation to trauma and orthopaedic services in Wales. 

These include: 

• the need to raise the profile of trauma services at both Welsh Government and NHS Wales

level – there is a belief that trauma care is perceived and treated as a low priority;

• the lack of executive oversight for trauma services in some health boards;

• unacceptable variation between individual hospitals in terms of resource and care pathways

for the management of trauma patients;

• a lack of understanding of the interdependence between the unplanned trauma burden and

planned elective service.

The development of a Trauma Service Strategy for Wales, which is completely separate from 

waiting list initiatives and elective surgery, could help address these concerns and put trauma 

services firmly back on the agenda. 

I would be grateful if you would give consideration to these issues, and I look forward to receiving 

your response.  

Yours sincerely 

Dr Dai Lloyd AM 

Chair, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

Vaughan Gething MS 

Minister for Health and Social Services 

Welsh Government 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 8 / Paper 8

Pack Page 87

Agenda Item 5.6



Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Minister for Health and Social Services 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: VG-0320-20 

Dr Dai Lloyd MS  
Chair, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
Welsh Parliament  
Cardiff Bay  
Cardiff  
CF99 1SN  

30 October 2020 

Dear Dai, 

Thank you for your letter of 7 October highlighting concerns raised with you in relation to 
trauma and orthopaedic services in Wales.  Dr Aeneas O’Kelly, President of the Welsh 
Orthopaedic Society has also written to me regarding trauma and orthopaedic services 
across Wales. 

In managing trauma and orthopaedic services, I do agree that there is a need to consider 
the different requirements of one which is essentially an unscheduled care challenge and 
the other a planned care service. I have established a group to review the MSK pathway in 
its entirety including trauma and as part of this review I would expect the points raised in 
your letter to be covered to some extent. This review will need to work with the Falls and 
Fragility Fracture Audit Programme Strategic Group mentioned below to ensure that all 
areas are covered. 

The South Wales Trauma Network was launched on Monday 14 September 2020.  Major 
trauma is defined as multiple and serious injuries that could result in disability or death. 
These may include serious head injuries, multiple injuries caused by road traffic accidents, 
industrial accidents, falls, knife and gunshot wounds. Clinical and operational models have 
been developed to ensure the delivery of high quality care throughout the patient pathway 
from pre-hospital through to rehabilitation.  A key element of these models are the service 
indicators which outline service provision expectations in all sites and will be monitored by 
the Network.  These indicators do not relate exclusively to orthopaedics, but orthopaedics 
will be a significant speciality for the delivery of major trauma care to Wales.   As such the 
delivery of care at all levels will be more closely monitored through submission to the 
Trauma Audit Research Network (TARN) and Network reporting.  This will support 
identification of variation in care pathways and focusing of investment to ensure systematic 
improvements in care. 

Trauma in orthopaedics can range from a broken finger to spinal fractures, and includes 
Fractured Neck of Femur which is a significant injury common in the elderly and subject to 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-28-20 Papur 9 / Paper 9

Pack Page 88

Agenda Item 5.7

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales


UK wide data submission under the Royal College of Physicians.  For a number of years 
Welsh Hospitals have suffered in comparison to clinical outcomes recorded by hospitals 
within England, partly due to the service investment developed through the “Best Practice” 
funding model in place.  The Welsh Government has supported identification and lessening 
of variation in both practice and outcomes for patients with fractured neck of femur through 
the multi-professional Falls & Fragility Fracture Audit Programme Strategic Group, chaired 
by Dr Chris Jones, with Dr Inderpal Singh from ABUHB being newly appointed as Clinical 
Lead. 
 
The interdependence between unplanned orthopaedic trauma and elective services is key 
to the development of both suitable staffing models, the recruitment of high quality staff and 
delivery of operational plans within all health systems.    The monitoring and scrutiny of 
delivery plans from health boards is an established practice for Welsh Government and 
trauma services have been included as an essential service requiring protection during the 
COVID pandemic.  As mentioned above they will also be covered in the MSK review that is 
taking place. 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol  
Minister for Health and Social Services 
 

Pack Page 89


	Agenda
	3 COVID-19: Discussion of key issues for the inquiry into the impact of Covid-19 on mental health
	Research brief

	4 COVID-19: Evidence session with the Minister for Mental Health, Wellbeing and Welsh Language
	5.1 Letter from the Welsh Local Government Association with additional information following the meeting of 23 September 2020
	5.2 Letter from Aneurin Bevan University Health Board regarding rest facilities at the Grange University Hospital
	5.3 Letter from the Chair of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee to the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding the Nutrition Related Labelling, Composition and Standards Provisional Common Framework
	5.4 Letter from the Chair of the Legislation, Justice and Constitution Committee to y Llywydd regarding the scrutiny of Covid-19 regulations
	5.5 Community Health Council's report: Maternity Care during the Coronavirus Pandemic
	5.6 Letter to the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding trauma and orthopaedic services in Wales
	5.7 Letter from the Minister for Health and Social Services regarding trauma and orthopaedic services in Wales



